
ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

MEETING AGENDA 
*Agenda subject to change*

July 25, 2023 

Ernest J. LaBaff Industrial Building, 19 Commerce Lane, Suite 1, Canton, New York 13617 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 
 

Public Notice July 19, 2023 

Public Comment 

Approval of Minutes June 27, 2023 ........................................................................................ 1-2 

Financial Report 

Reports of Committees                     

Staff Report Patrick Kelly 

Old Business None 

New Business                  Resolution: Authorizing Funds through the St. Lawrence River Valley 
Redevelopment Agency 2023 Community Development and 
Environmental Improvement Program  .............................. 3-5 

Executive Session 

Adjournment



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



DRAFT

ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 Meeting of June 27, 2023 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Staples calls the meeting to order at 1:38 PM in the main conference room at 
the Ernest J. LaBaff Industrial Building, Canton.   

ROLL CALL: 
Staples .....................  Present McMahon ..............  Absent 
LaBaff ......................  Present Morrill ...................    Present 
Blevins ..................... 
Hall .......................... 

Absent 
Present 

Reagen ..................  Present 

A quorum is recognized.  

IDA Staff present: Patrick Kelly, Lori Sibley, Kimberly Gilbert, and Richard Williams.  

PUBLIC NOTICE: Public notifications sent June 20, 2023 to, at a minimum: newspapers designated for the 
publication of local laws and other matters required by law to be published; additional local media sources 
and websites. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  Andy Gardner, Reporter for Johnson Newspapers is present.  No public comment. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to accept the minutes of the May 23, 2023 meeting by Mr. LaBaff,
seconded by Mr. Reagen.  Motion carried unanimously. 

FINANCIAL REPORTS:  Ms. Gilbert reports on the April 2023 financial report, mentioning the gains/losses on 
investments and interest income.  She adds that there will be an adjustment in June that will show a journal entry 
reflecting interest going to the investment account. Ms. Gilbert continues with the May 2023 financial report, 
showing typical expenditures and gains/losses on investments.  Motion to accept the April and May 2023 financial 
reports by Mr. LaBaff, seconded by Mr. Reagen.   Motion is approved by unanimous vote. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: Nominating Committee (LaBaff – Chair, Blevins, and Reagen). Nominating
Committee Chairman Ernest LaBaff offers the following slate of officers: Brian W. Staples (Chairman), Lynn 
Blevins (Vice-Chairman) and Ernest LaBaff (Secretary).  Hearing no other nominations, a motion to accept the
slate of officers is made by Mr. LaBaff, seconded by Mr. Reagen.  Motion carried unanimously.

STAFF REPORT:  Mr. Kelly reports the following: 

St. Lawrence River Valley Redevelopment Agency: The RVRDA is reviewing Community Development & 
Environmental Improvement Program applications.  A meeting will be scheduled soon to vote on awards that 
require final approval by the SLCIDA-LDC.   

NEW BUSINESS:  

Resolution LDC-23-06-11: Authorizing a Loan in an amount of up to $322,000 to Atlantic Testing 
Laboratories, Limited:  Mr. Kelly provides a brief history and notes that the company has two existing loans with 
a flawless repayment history, never having a late payment.   The project will support the company’s drilling division, 
located in Canton. Mr. LaBaff motions to approve Resolution LDC-23-06-11, seconded by Mr. Reagen.  The 
motion is approved by unanimous vote.   

Page 1



DRAFT

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Mr. LaBaff/Mr. Reagen motion/second for executive session at 1:43 PM to review 
the financial credit of specific companies.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  At 1:53 PM Mr. 
Mr. LaBaff/Mr. Hall motion/second to return to regular session. The motion is approved by unanimous vote.    
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: A motion to adjourn is made by Mr. LaBaff, seconded by Mr. Reagen. The meeting 
adjourns at 1: 53 PM by unanimous vote.      

        
 
_______________________________________ 
Mr. Ernest LaBaff, Secretary 

 

Page 2



 
ST. LAWRENCE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Resolution No. LDC-23-07-xx 

 July 25, 2023 
 

AUTHORIZING FUNDS THROUGH THE 
ST LAWRENCE RIVER VALLEY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY’S 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development Agency Local Development 
Corporation (the “SLCIDA-LDC”) was formed by the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development 
Agency to relieve and reduce unemployment, to promote and to provide for additional and maximum 
employment, to better and maintain job opportunities, to instruct or train individuals to improve or to 
develop their capabilities for jobs, to carry on scientific research for the purpose of aiding the 
community of St. Lawrence County, New York by attracting industry to the community and by 
encouraging the development of, or retention of, an industry in the community, and to lessen the 
burdens of government and to act in the public interest, thus performing an essential governmental 
function, and 

 
WHEREAS, the SLCIDA-LDC entered in an Agreement with the St. Lawrence River Valley 

Redevelopment Agency (the “RVRDA”), and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section II (1) NYPA Allocation Agreement, “…nothing herein shall 

cause the (Corporation) to undertake any act or participate in any portion of the Allocation Program 
unless approved by the (Corporation).” and  

 
WHEREAS, on July 11, 2023, the RVRDA adopted Resolution No. RVR-23-07-05, 

“Authorizing Funds through the St. Lawrence River Valley Redevelopment Agency’s Community 
Development and Environmental Improvement Program”, copies of which are attached to this 
resolution,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the St. Lawrence County Industrial 

Development Agency Local Development Corporation, having exercised its own due diligence in the 
matter, authorizes the allocation of St. Lawrence River Valley Redevelopment Agency funds, as 
outlined in RVRDA Resolution No. RVR-23-07-05, and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the St. Lawrence County Industrial Development 

Agency Local Development Corporation authorizes the creation, execution and/or delivery of any and 
all documents and/or budget accounts that may be required to effectuate the transaction contemplated 
by this resolution.  
 

Move:   I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared this copy 
of this Resolution with the original record in this office, 
and that the same is a correct transcript thereof and of 
the whole of said original record. 
 
/s/  

Second:   
VOTE AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT  

Blevins      
Hall      
LaBaff      
McMahon      
Morrill      Lori Sibley                                               July 25, 2023 
Reagen     

 

Staples     
 

  

Page 3



 
 

ST. LAWRENCE RIVER VALLEY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
Resolution No. RVR-23-07-05 

July 11, 2023 
 

AUTHORIZING FUNDS THROUGH THE 
ST LAWRENCE RIVER VALLEY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY’S 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Lawrence River Valley Redevelopment Agency, in support of projects 
which enhance community development, environmental improvement, and employment 
opportunities in St. Lawrence County, set aside up to 5% of its unrestricted cash assets for a 
Community Development and Environmental Improvement Program (“CDEIP”), and 

WHEREAS, the Agency has partnered with the St. Lawrence County Industrial 
Development Agency Local Development Corporation (“SLCIDA-LDC”) for the purpose of 
providing assistance to such projects, and 

WHEREAS, the St. Lawrence River Valley Redevelopment Agency accepted applications 
for CDEIP funding assistance until April 14, 2023, and 

WHEREAS, said funding will assist communities, not-for-profit organizations, 
institutions and other incorporated entities that are planning to undertake a project that will provide 
a clear and demonstrable community benefit, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the St. Lawrence River Valley 
Redevelopment Agency authorizes the SLCIDA-LDC to allocate funds in the amounts and for the 
projects described in the attached document (Exhibit A). 

 
Move: Clark  I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared this copy of this 

Resolution with the original record in this office, and that the 
same is a correct transcript thereof and of the whole of said 
original record. 
 
 
/s/     

Second: Kramer  
VOTE AYE NAY ABSTAIN ABSENT  

McNeil    X  
Clark X     
Forsythe X     
Kramer X     
Strait X     Lori Sibley                                                         July 11, 2023  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4


	2023-0627_IDALDC_MeetingMinutes
	Meeting of June 27, 2023
	CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Staples calls the meeting to order at 1:38 PM in the main conference room at the Ernest J. LaBaff Industrial Building, Canton.
	ROLL CALL:
	PUBLIC NOTICE: Public notifications sent June 20, 2023 to, at a minimum: newspapers designated for the publication of local laws and other matters required by law to be published; additional local media sources and websites.

	2023-0725_MeetingAgenda_LDC
	LDC-23-07-xx Authorizing CDEIP Grant awards



